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Completed sale of
Lane Cove residential
development for
$40m which resulted
in a 15c fully franked
special dividend

Desane commenced
the rezoning process
for its mixed use
development at 68 72
Lilyfield Road, Rozelle

Desane continues

to source value-add
property acquisitions
which will generate
annual profits and
reward shareholders
with fully franked
dividends

Desane developed its
mixed use site in the
Sydney suburb of
Rozelle. "Easton”

was a development
comprising 32
residential apartments
and 3 commercial
suites. The development
was well received by
the market, generating
in excess of $31min
gross sales revenue
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Ipresenttoshareholdersthe 2017 Desane Group Holdings
Limited Annual Report.

Itis with pleasure thatIcanreporttoshareholdersthatthe
Group’s earnings beforeinterest and tax, for the financial
yearending30June 2017,is andthe Group’s netassets
are .The Group’s

accountingforthisyear’s
proposeddividend payments.

It willberecalled the Directors rewarded shareholders by

paying aninterim dividend of per securityin

March 2017,and the Directors have now resolved to declare
afinaldividend of per security, fully franked, and
a of per security, fully franked,

both to be paidin October 2017.

Maintenance of the Group’s continuing strong financial
results was achieved notwithstanding ayear of significant
global, political, and unfortunately, security uncertainty. As
mentionedin my reportlastyear,the Brexit votein the United
Kingdom toleave the European Community (EU) has installed
adegree of uncertaintyin globaltrading, which paradoxically
has appearedtohave notimpacted upon Australian equity and
property markets. Thislatter aspectis unsurprising given the
continuinginterest by overseasinvestorsinboth Australian
equities and property, reflectingoverseas perceptions of
Australiaas asafe havenforfunds onbothashortand medium
term basis. The continuing economic strength of China still
remains a major source of strength for the Australian economy,
asevidenced by the continuing appreciation of the Australian
currency sometimes contrarytothe wishes of the Reserve
Bank of Australia. Thelow levels of volatility of global markets
over the pastyear hasalsobeenevidentinthe Australian
share priceindex (ASX300) which has tradedin a quite narrow
range. Notwithstanding, the Australian economy continues
tooutperform manyother OECD countriesandisviewed as a
bellwether of the East Asian economies, notably China whose
political structureis arguablylessliberal than the Australian
governance model.

All of the above, coupled with the maintenance by the Reserve
Bank of Australia of officialinterest rates at a historiclow has
created afavourable environment forthoseintending toinvest
in propertyin this country. The demand for residential real
estateintheinner and middle ring suburbs of Sydney, coupled
more recently withincreasing demand from overseasinvestors
for quality commercialandindustrial real estate, strongly
suggests that these markets willcontinue tobe robust and that
asset sales willevidence significantincreasesinvalue. The

low cost of debt andincreasesin rentals notableinindustrial
and commercial properties has resultedinasignificant
strengthening of capitalisation rates, atlevels having not been
seenfor manyyears.Itisgenerally understood that the pool of
suitable commercialand industrial properties available for sale
orleaseinthe Sydney metropolitan areais small,adding further
impetus to the demand for such properties.

Insuchavibrant market for property, Desane remains well
positioned holding anincreasingly valuable portfolio of
existingindustrialand specialised commercial properties,
which evidence strongleasing demand, and obviously good
value for paossible sale at some future opportunity.

Inmyearlier reports toshareholders over the past couple
ofyears,it willbe recalled that concern has been expressed
about theneedtoreformthe Stateland use planning regime.
It remains of concern that the pivotal planninglegislation,
namely the existing Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act1979stilloverseesatardyprocess of rezoning whena
rezoningis required to meet market and community demands.
Our Company continues to watch this process carefully, given
that thelimited prospects of rezoning remain a significant
throttleontheland supply, whether residential, commercial,
retailorindustrial.I note with pleasure thatIcanreportto
sharehaoldersthat thisannualreportis the30th such report
of Desane Group Holdings Limited and notwithstanding a
sametimes volatile paolitical and market environment, your
Company has continued to prosper due to the quality of its
management and theinvaluable contribution of its past and
present Board.

Your Board remains confident the Group’s strategies will
continue toresultin solid asset growthinthe 2017/2018
financialyear, as the property market firms.Icongratulate
both the Group Executive and the employees of Desane
Group Holdings Limited for the solid and as always, prudent
management of the Group, again evidentin thisyear’s strong
financial results.

Finally, I would like to welcome those shareholders who
have recentlyjoined the Company. The Boardlooks forward
toarewarding and fruitfulassociation with those new
shareholders during the coming years.

V 7

PROFESSOR
Chairman



MANAGING DIRECTOR - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
DIRECTOR HEAD OF PROPERTY & COMPANY SECRETARY (NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR) (NON-EXECUTIVE)
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/ SIRIUS ROAD,
LANE COVE

This 2,800m2 commercial buildingislocated within
the Lane Cove West high techindustrial precinct. On
site parkingis provided for 38 cars.

The property comprises approximately 460m2 of high
tech office and 2,240m2 of high clearance warehouse
andis fullyleased on a WALE of 3.4 yearstoalarge
Australian medical supply company.

This property should show rental and capital
appreciation growth for Desane’s portfolioin
futureyears.

VALUATION SUMMARY

Ownership Interest 100%
Title Freehold
Current Book Value ($) 6.8M
Capitalisation Rate (%) 6.25

PROPERTY SUMMARY

Net Lettable Area (m2) 2,778
Occupancy (%) 100.0
WALE (yrs) 3.4
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13 SIRIUS ROAD,

LANE COVE

The Sirius Road property comprises approximately
2,200m2 of commercial building over two floors and
islocated approximately 100 metres from the other
two Lane Cove West properties owned by Desanein
the high techindustrial precinct. On site parkingis
provided for 52 carsinan underground basement car
park.

The propertyis fully leased on a WALE of
2.0 yearstotwolarge Australian companies.

The propertyis performing well and is continuing
toshow rental and capital appreciation growth
for the Group.

VALUATION SUMMARY

Ownership Interest 100%
Title Freehold
Current Book Value ($) 5.3M
Capitalisation Rate (%) 6.25

PROPERTY SUMMARY

Net Lettable Area (m2) 2,181
Occupancy (%) 100.0
WALE (yrs) 2.0

/-9 ORION ROAD,
LANE COVE

The property was sold for $18.2m, with settlement
completed on 31July 2017. The sale price reflects a
5.5% yield on afullyleased basis. The Group’s cash
position has been further boosted by $12.3m following
the sale of the propertyand the Group’s total debt
facility was also reduced by 32% to $11.1m.
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= LILYFIELD
ROAD, ROZELLE

This 5,274m2 mixed use development siteislocatedin
the highly sought afterinner Sydney suburb of Rozelle.

The propertyis four kilometres from the Sydney CBD
andis a prized siteintheinner west area, which rarely
sees sites available for housing development. Itis also
part of the urban renewel Bays Precinct.

InJune 2015, Desanelodged a planning proposal with the
NSW Department of Planning to allow for a mixed use
development. The planning proposalis stillalive
planning proposal. On 10 March 2017, the Roads and
Maritime Services (“RMS”) made an offer of $18.4m for
the freehold of the property.

On 4 August 2017, Desanelodged a section 39 claim
under the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation)
Act 1991 with the RMS. Refer tonote 22 for further
information.

In August 2017, Desanelaunchedlegal action against the
State of New South Wales to prevent the acquisition of
the property proceeding.
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THORNTON DR,
PENRITH

Desane hasengaged the services of leading urban design
and planning firm, Architectus andleading planners,
Urbis, to prepare a planning proposal for the rezoning of
its 1.2ha property at Thornton Drivein Penrith. The
planning proposal will seek to achieve the highest quality
outcome for the site.

The propertyis currently zonedlight industrial (IN2)
under Penrith City Council Local Environmental Plan.

Desane’s 1.2ha property sitsinaprecinct which will
ultimately provide over 1,000 new residential dwellings.
Itislocated 400m from Penrith Railway Station and
600m from Westfield Penrith Plaza and the Penrith
commercial business centre.
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EBIT

$7.9m

TOTAL ASSETS

$58.4m

()

FY17

FULLY FRANKED
DIVIDENDS TOTAL
14.5 CENTS

NET
ASSETS

$30.5m

-
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Jirectors of Desane Group Holdings
nited present their report, together
with the financial report of the Company
and its controlled entities for the
financial year ended 30 June 2017.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of Desane Group Holdings Limited (“Desane” and “the Company”’) present their report, together
with the financial report of the Company andits controlled entities for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

“THE DESANE WAY"

Desaneisanintegrated property company with capabilities and expertisein high guality propertyinvestments.

Ourinvestment focusis on both commercial real estate, with value-add potential and high quality development projects,
which convert toincreasing shareholder value in the medium tolong term.
There were no significant changesin the principal activities of the Company during the financial year, which were:
Property development (residential and mixed use); and
Propertyinvestment.

The Company also intends to acquire properties, funded by existing capital and bank funding within the gearing
policy of a loan to value ratio ("LVR”) of less than 50%.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Boardis pleased with the operational performance for the financial year ended 30 June 2017, resulting in a profit
after tax of $5.1m and being able to reward shareholders with continued fully franked dividends.

2017 2016

$'000 $'000

The profit of the consolidated group, after providing forincome tax amounted to 5,045 5,067
A summary of consolidated financial results by operational segmentsis set out below:

TOTAL REVENUE SEGMENT RESULT

2017 2016 2017 2016

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Property development sales 645 28,368 645 28,368

Property development cost base - - 477) (23,820)

Property development expenses - = (357) =

Revaluationincrement —investment property held for resale 5,139 - 5,139 -

Propertyinvestment — rental 2,112 2,305 645 1177

Property services 106 66 106 66

Property management 138 162 138 162

Propertyinvestment — net revaluations 1,900 2,032 1,900 2,032

Project management - 83 - 83

Interestincome 528 270 528 270

10,568 33,286 8,267 8,338

Less: Unallocated expenses (1,079) (1,078)

Operating profit 7,188 7,260

Income tax (expense)/benefit attributable to operating profit (2,752) (528)

Deferredtaxattributable to operating profit 609 (1,665)

Operating profit afterincome tax attributable
tomembers of Desane Group Holdings Limited 5,045 5,067
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DIVIDENDS PAID OR DECLARED

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Dividends paid or declared for payment are as follows:
Interimdividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, paid on 31 March 2016 823
Ordinarydividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, paid on 7 October 2016 830
Interimdividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, paid on 31 March 2017 837
Ordinarydividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, declared by
the directors fromretained earnings payable on 6 October 2017 837
Specialdividend of $0.10 franked, per share, declared by
the directorsfromretained earnings payable on 6 October 2017 3,719

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN (DRP)

The DRP, which wasintroducedin May 2015, was suspended by the Board on 20 February 2017, until further notice.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017 is strong, with cash of $9.4 million and the Loan to
Value Ratio (“LVR”) remaining below 40%. The Group’s cash position has been further boosted by $12.3m following

the sale of 7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove on 31July 2017.

Finance costs remain steady at $0.6m for 2017.In July 2017, following the sale of 7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove, the

Company’s total debt facility has been reduced by 32% to $11.1m.
EXISTING PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Desane continues to be activein the Sydney metropolitan property market and willendeavour toincreaseits property
holdings as market opportunities arise, despite alocal property market at the peak of historical valuations.

The summary for each of the propertiesin the portfolioasat30 June 2017 is summarised below:

Asset Area & Type Strategy

68-72 Lilyfield Road 5,274m? InJune 2015, Desanelodged a planning propasal with the NSW

ROZELLE Mixed use Department of Planning to allow for a mixed use development.
development property The planning proposalis still alive planning proposal. On 10 March

2017, the Roads and Maritime Services (“RMS”’) made an offer
of $18.4m for the freehold of the property. On 26 May 2017, RMS
issued a Proposed Acquisition Notice (“PAN”’) to commence a
compulsory acquisition process.

Desane,on 4 August 2017,lodged a section 39 claim under the
Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991 with the
RMS. Refer tonote 22 for furtherinformation.

91 Thornton Drive 1.2ha Desane has commenced a rezoning proposal for the development

PENRITH

Development property of the property with the view of achieving the highest and best
outcome for the site.

7 Sirius Road 2,800m:2 The propertyis100% leased and generating annualised rental
LANECOVE Commercial / growth of approximately 3.5% — 4.0%.

industrial building
13 Sirius Road 2,200m? The propertyis100% leased and generating annualised rental
LANE COVE Commercial / growth of approximately 3.5% — 4.0%.

industrial building
7—-9 Orion Road 6,000m? The property was sold for $18.2m, with settlement completed
LANE COVE Office and warehouse on31July 2017. The sale price reflects a 5.5% yield on a fully

leased basis.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Thedirectors believe the Groupisinastrongand

stable financial position to expand and grow its current
operations. Thisislargely due to the following key factors
asat30June2017:

Cash and financial assets of $11.6 million;
Group net tangible assets $30.5 million;

Earnings beforeinterest and tax (EBIT) of $7.9 million;
and

Net profit after tax (NPAT) of $5.1 million.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE
OF AFFAIRS

There was no significant changein the state of affairs of
the Group.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

The sale of 7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove was completed
on31July 2017. Following settlement, the Group’s cash
position has been further boosted by $12.3m and the
Company’s total debt facility has been reduced by 32%
to $11.1m.

Desane announced to the ASXon 11 August 2017, that

it has commenced urgent proceedingsin the Supreme
Court of NSW, seeking relief that the State of New South
Wales, the Roads and Maritime Services (“RMS”) and
Sydney Motorway Corporation (“SMC”) be restrained
from acting upon or taking any step,in reliance upaon the
Proposed Acquisition Notice (““PAN”) issued by RMS to
Desanedated 26 May 2017. Desane has sought on a final
basis adeclaration that the PAN wasinvalid and that the
notice be set aside. The matteris scheduled to be heardin
the Supreme Court of NSWon 20 November 2017.

Other thanthe above, at the date of this report and

in the opinion of the directors, no other matters or
circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial
year which significantly affected or may significantly
affect the operations of the consolidated group, the
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
consolidated groupin future financial years.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The consolidated group complies with all relevant
legislation and regulationsinrespect toenvironmental
matters. Nomatters have arisen during the yearin
connection with Desane’s obligations pursuant to
Commonwealth and State environmental regulations.

DESANE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUALREPORT 2017
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
SAFETY REGULATIONS

The consolidated group complies with all relevant
legislation and regulationsin respect to occupational
health and safety matters. No matters have arisen during
theyearinconnection with Desane’s obligations pursuant
to Commonwealth and State occupational health and
safety regulations.

DIRECTORS

The names of directorsin office at any time during
or since the end of the financial year are:

John Blair Sheehan

Phil Montrone

John William Bartholomew
Rick Montrone

The directors have beenin office since the start of
the financial year to the date of this report, unless
otherwise stated.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

PROF. JOHN B SHEEHAN AM
Chairman (Non-executive Director)

Prof. Sheehan, a Life Fellow member of the Australian
PropertyInstitute,hasover 30 years experience and
expertisein property compensationlaw, town and
country planning and environmentallaw. He has been
a board member since the Company’sincorporationin
1987 and was appointed as Chairmanin 1892, which he
currently serves.

In addition to his role as Chairman, Prof. Sheehanis
amember of the Risk Management & Audit Committee,
member and Chairman of the Remuneration &
Nomination Committee, member of the Finance &
Operations Committee and member and Chairman

of the Environmental, Occupational Health and

Safety Committee.

PHIL MONTRONE OAM

Managing Director (Executive)

Mr P Montrone has over 30 years experience and
expertisein propertyinvestment, acquisitions,
development and project management. He has been

a significant board member since the Company’s
incorporationin 1987 and was appointed as Managing
Directorin 1987, which he currently serves.

Further to his role as Managing Director, Mr P Montrone
isamember of the Risk Management & Audit Committee,
member of the Finance & Operations Committee and
member of the Environmental, Occupational Health &
Safety Committee.

JOHN BARTHOLOMEW

Director (Non-executive)

Mr Bartholomew has over 30 years experience and
expertiseinaccounting, taxation, propertyinvestment
and property management. He has been a board member
since his appointmentin 2010, which he currently serves.

Mr Bartholomew has served as Company Secretary
of Desane Group Holdings Limited from 1989 to 2016.

Further to his role as non-executive Director, Mr
Bartholomew is the Chairman and member of the

Risk Management & Audit Committee, member of the
Remuneration & Nomination Committee, member of the
Finance & Operations Committee and member of the

Environmental, Occupational Health & Safety Committee.

RICK MONTRONE

Director - Head of Property (Executive)

Mr R Montrone, who was appointed as Directorin

2015, has 15 years experiencein propertyinvestment,
acquisitions, developments, management,leasing,
sales and project management. Rickis alicensed real
estateagentand anassociate member of the Australian
Property Institute.

Further tohis role as Director, Mr R Montroneis a
member of the Risk Management & Audit Committee,
member of the Finance & Operations Committee and
member of the Environmental, Occupational Health
& Safety Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The following person held the position of company
secretaryat the end of the financial year:

Mr Jack Sciara
Member of the IPA

Registered tax agent

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

BALANCE RECEIVED AS OPTIONS NET CHANGE  BALANCE
KEY PERSONNEL 30.06.16 COMPENSATION EXERCISED OTHER*  30.06.17
John B.Sheehan 131,559 - - 3,654 135,213
Phil Montrone 12,580,618 - - - 12,580,618
John Bartholomew 613,885 - - 16,971 630,856
Rick Montrone 52,269 - - 1,452 53,721
Jack Sciara 179,118 - - 19,480 198,598

13,557,449 - - 41,557 13,599,006

* “NetChange Other” referstoshares purchasedor soldduring the financialyear,including shares received by participatingin the Dividend

Reinvestment Plan.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

This report details the nature and amount of
remuneration for each director of Desane Group Holdings
Limited, and for the executives receiving the highest
remuneration.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of Desane Group Holdings
Limited has been designed to align director and
executive objectives with shareholder and business
objectives by providing a fixed remuneration package.
The board of Desane Group Holdings Limited believes the
remuneration policy to be appropriate and effectivein
its ability to attract and retain the best executives and
directors torunand manage the consolidated group,

as well as create goal congruence between directors,
executives and shareholders.

The board’s policy for determining the nature and
amount of remuneration for board members and senior
executives of the consolidated groupis as follows:

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and
conditions for the executive directors’ and other
senior executives, was developed by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the board.

Allexecutives receive a fixed base salary (which
is based onfactors such aslength of service and

experience), superannuation and minor fringe benefits.

The Remuneration Committee reviews executive
packages annually by reference to the consolidated
group’s performance, executive performance and
comparableinformation fromindustry sectors and
otherlisted companiesin similarindustries.

At present, there are no performance bonuses or
incentive schemesin place. The Board may, however,
exerciseits discretionin relation toapprovingincentives
and performance bonuses, and can recommend changes
tothe committee’s recommendations. The policyis
designed toenable the Board toattract the highest
calibre of executives and reward them for performance
that resultsinlong term growth and shareholder wealth.

DESANE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUALREPORT 2017

v

The executive director and executives receive a
superannuation guarantee contribution required by the
government, whichis currently 8.5% (2015/2016 — 9.5%),
anddonot receive any other retirement benefits. They
can, however, choose to sacrifice part of their salary
toincrease payments towards superannuation.

Allremuneration paid todirectors and executivesis
valued at the cost tothe company and expensed.

The board policyis toremunerate non-executive
directors at market rates for time, commitment and
responsibilities. The remuneration committee determines
payments to the non-executive directors and reviews
their remuneration annually, based on market practice,
duties and accountability. Independent external advice
is sought when required. Furthermore, should the
maximum aggregate totalannual remuneration for
allnon-executive directors exceed $300,000, then

the totalannual aggregate amount of fees that can be
paid tonon-executive directorsis subject toapproval
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Fees
for non-executive directors are notlinked to the
performance of the economic entity. However, to align
directors’interests with shareholderinterests, the
directors are encouraged to hold sharesin the company
and are able to participatein bonusissues.

PERFORMANCE-BASED REMUNERATION

The remuneration policy does not provide for a
performance based component of the executive
director and executives’ remuneration.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

The remuneration for each director and the executive officer of the consalidated entity receiving the highest

remuneration during the year was as follows:

POST
SHORT TERM EMPLOYMENT LONG TERM
BENEFITS BENEFITS BENEFIT
SALARY, FEES & SUPER-
COMMISSIONS ANNUATION TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Directors
John B.Sheehan (non-executive) 66 = = 66
Phil Montrone 258 58 — 316
John Bartholomew (non-executive) 12 = - 12
Rick Montrone 250 24 = 274
Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary
Jack Sciara 162 15 = 177
748 97 = 845

Therearenoequity or share based payments nor termination benefits.

OPTIONS ISSUED AS PART OF REMUNERATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Theremuneration policy does not provide for theissue of options todirectors and executives as part of their remuneration.

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

The Managing Director and all executives are permanent employees of Desane and are entitled tonormal statutory

leave benefits only.
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The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings attended
by each of the directors of the company during the financial year are:

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS &
FINANCE & OPERATIONS

RISK MANAGEMENT
& AUDIT COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MEETINGS MEETINGS

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

Attended Held Attended Held

J B Sheehan 12 12 2 2

P Montrone 12 12 2 2

J Bartholomew 12 12 2 2

R Montrone 12 12 2 2

J Sciara 12 12 2 2

ENVIRONMENTAL & REMUNERATION

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & NOMINATION

& SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETINGS COMMITTEE MEETINGS

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

Attended Held Attended Held

J B Sheehan 1 1 1 1

P Montrone 1 1 1 1

J Bartholomew 1 1 1 1

R Montrone 1 1 1% 1

J Sciara 1 1 5 1

* Byinvitation

INDEMNIFYING OFFICERS OR AUDITOR OPTIONS

The company or consolidated group has not, during or
since the financial year,in respect of any person who
isor has been an officer or auditor of the company or a
related body corporate,indemnified or made any relevant
agreement forindemnifying against aliabilityincurred as
an officer,including costs and expensesin successfully
defendinglegal proceedings.

The company paid a premium of $11,296 toinsure the
directors of the company and controlled entities. The
policy provides cover forindividual directors and officers
of the company,in respect of claims made and notified
totheinsurer during the policy period forlosses and
expensesincurredin defence of claims for any alleged
wrongful acts arising out of their official capacities. It
will also reimburse the company for any liability it has to
indemnify the directors or officers for suchlosses.

Itis noted that the company’s Constitution allows an
officer or auditor of the company to beindemnified

by the company against anyliahilityincurred by him
in his capacity of officer or auditorin defending any
proceedingsin whichjudgementis givenin his favour.
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No options have been granted over unissued shares
during the financial year and there are no outstanding
optionsat 30 June 2017.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE
COMPANY

No person has applied forleave of Court to bring
proceedings on behalf of the company orintervenein

any proceedings to which the companyis a party for the
purpaose of taking responsibility on behalf of the company
forallor any part of those proceedings. The company
was not a party toany such proceedings during the 2017
financial year. Please refer tonote “Events Subsequent
to Balance Date” for details regardinglegal proceedings
of the 68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle property.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The board of directors,inaccordance with the advice
from the Audit Committee, is satisfied that the provision
of non-audit services during the yearis compatible

with the general standard of independence for auditors
imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors
are satisfied that the services disclosed below did not
compromise the externalauditor’sindependence for
the following reasons:

Allnon-audit services are reviewed and approved
by the Audit Committee prior tocommencement to
ensure they donot adversely affect theintegrity and
objectivity of the auditor; and

The nature of the services provided does not
compromise the general principles relating to auditor
independenceinaccordance with APES 110: Code

of Ethics for Professional Accountants set by the
Accounting Professionaland Ethical Standards Board.

The following fees for non-audit services were paid/
payable to the externalauditors during the year ended
30 June 2017.

$'000

Taxation services 3

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

Thelead auditor’s Independence Declaration for the year
ended 30 June 2017, has been received and can be found on
page 24 of the Annual Report.

ASIC CLASS ORDER 98/100 ROUNDING
OF AMOUNTS

The companyis anentity towhich ASIC Class Order
98/100 applies and accordingly,amountsin the financial
statements anddirectors’ report have been rounded to
the nearest thousand dollars.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Desaneis committed toimplementing sound standards

of corporate governance. The Group has takeninto
consideration the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s
Corporate Governance principles and Recommendations
(3rd Edition) (“ASX Recommendations”). The Group’s
corporate governance statement outlines the key
principles and practices of the Company. A copy of the
Group’s Corporate Governance Statement has been
placed on the Group’s website under the About Us tabin
the Corporate Governance Section — http://desane.com.
au/about-us/corporate-governance

This Report of the Directors, incorporating the
Remuneration Report,is signedin accordance with
aresolution of the Board of Directors, at Sydney, this
23rddayof August, 2017.

/%z Ll 2

J B Sheehan
Director

P Montrone
Director
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v
GCC Business & Assurance Pty Ltd GPO Box 4566, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone: (02) 9231 6166
ABN 61 105 044 862 Facsimile: (02) 9231 6155

Suite 807, 109 Pitt Street, Sydney NSW 2000

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TO THE DIRECTORS OF DESANE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2017 there have been no
contraventions of:

(i) The auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(i) Any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

é’,C( &IOWq ¢ Aecremmnce ﬂ§ LA

GCC BUSINESS & ASSURANCE PTY LTD
(Authorised Audit Company)

s .
P CFECE T

GRAEME GREEN
Director

23 August 2017

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016

NOTE $'000 $'000
Continuing Operations
Revenue 2 2,356 2,616
Otherincome 2a,2b 528 270
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of investment properties 2 1,900 2,032
Property development profit 2 168 4,548
Revaluationincrement — investment property held for resale 2 5,139 -
Property development expenses (357) =
Employee benefits expense (935) (831)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (10) (10)
Finance costs (667) (641)
Other expenses from ordinary activities (934) (724)
Profit beforeincome tax 7,188 7,260
Income tax (expense)/benefit 4 (2,143) (2,193)
Profit from continuing operations 5,045 5,067
Other comprehensiveincome - -
Net Profit (after income tax) for the year ended 30 June 2017 5,045 5,067
Profit attributable to minority equityinterest - -
Profit attributable to members of the parent entity 5,045 5,067
Earnings per Share:
Overall Operations
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 8 13.57 13.73
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 8 13.57 13.73
Continuing Operations
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 13.57 13.73
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 13.57 13.73

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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DESANE.COM.AU

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

ISSUED RETAINED
CAPITAL EARNINGS TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balanceasat1July 2016 17,077 13,473 30,550
Sharesissuedduring theyear 231 - 231
Profit attributable to members of the parent entity - 5,045 5,045
17,308 18,518 35,826
Dividends paid or recognised for the year = (5,392) (5,392)
Balance at30June 2017 17,308 13,126 30,434
Issued Retained
Capital Earnings Total
$’000 $’000 $’'000
Balanceasat1July 2015 16,627 10,060 26,687
Sharesissued during theyear 450 - 450
Profitattributable to members of the parent entity - 5,067 5,067
17,077 15,127 32,204
Dividends paid or recognised for the year - (1,654) (1,654) 31
Balance at30June 2016 17,077 13,473 30,550

2017 2016

NOTE $'000 $'000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 9,422 15,749
Trade and other receivables 10 54 685
Other current assets " 134 108
Otherfinancial assets 2 2,201 1,451
Development property reclassified as current 13 12,481 460
Investment property held for sale 13 17,825 -
Total Current Assets 42,117 18,453
Non-current Assets
Investment properties 13 12,100 34,750
Development properties 13 4,154 -
Property, plant and equipment 14 & 40
Other assets I 4 8
Total Non-current Assets 16,291 34,798
Total Assets 58,408 53,251
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 413 466
Borrowings 16 10,735 -
Provisions 17 7,373 1,388
Total Current Liabilities 18,521 1,854
Non-current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 44 103
Borrowings 16 5,855 16,590
Provisions 19 27 18
Deferred taxliability 23 3,527 4,136
Total Non-current Liabilities 9,453 20,847
Total Liabilities 27,974 22,701
Net Assets 30,434 30,550
Equity
Issued capital 20 17,308 17,077
Retained earnings 21 13,126 13,473
Total Equity 30,434 30,550

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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DESANE.COM.AU

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
INFLOWS INFLOWS
(OUTFLOWS) (OUTFLOWS)
NOTE $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 2,887 3,505
Payments to suppliers and employees (2,132) (1,554)
Payment of companyincome tax (515) =
Proceeds from sale of development property 1,425 30,085
Property development expenditure (834) (8,068)
Interest received 528 270
Finance costs (667) (641)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 30 692 23,597

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3) m
Purchase of development properties (4,154) —
Purchase of financial assets (750) (1,451)
Capital costs ofinvestment properties (616) (58)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,523) (1,510)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of shares 231l 450
Dividends paid by parent entity (1,667) (1,547)
Proceeds from borrowings - 1,859
Repayments of borrowings - (11,703)
Retention held - (213)
Rental bonds repaid (78) -
Rental bonds received 18 78
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,496) (11,076)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (6,327) 11,011
Cash at beginning of financialyear 15,749 4,738
Cash at end of financial year 9 9,422 15,749

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

NOTE 1: SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial report covers the economic entity of

Desane Group Holdings Limited and its controlled
entities. The separate financial statements of the parent
entity, Desane Group Holdings Limited, have not been
presented within this financial report, as permitted by the
Corporations Act,2001. Desane Group Holdings Limited
isalisted public company,incorporated and domiciled

in Australia.

The consolidated financial statements are presentedin
Australiandollars, whichis the functional currency for
the parent company andits controlled entities.

The financial statements were authorised forissue on
23 August 2017 by the directors of the Company.

The financial statements are a general purpose financial
report, that have been preparedinaccordance with

the Corporations Act, 2001, Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (“AASB”) and the
International Financial Reporting Standards asissued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
The Groupisafor-profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting
policies that the AASB has concluded would result

in afinancial report containing relevant and reliable
information about transactions, events and conditions.
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards
ensures that the financial statements and notes also
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards,
asissued by IASB.

Except for cash flowinformation, the financial statements
have been preparedonanaccruals basisand are based
on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the
measurement at fair value of selected non-current
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

The followingis a summary of the material accounting
policies adopted by the consolidated groupin the
preparation of the financial report. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied, unless
otherwise stated.

The accounting policies set out below have been
consistently applied to all years presented.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Principals of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statementsincorporate all

of the assets, liabilities and results of the parent entity
controlled by Desane Group Holdings Limited and all of
its controlled entities. Desane Group Holdings Limited
controls an entity whenitis exposed to or has rights to,
variable returns fromitsinvolvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Alist of controlled entitiesis containedinnote31tothe
financial statements. All controlled entities havea30 June
financial year end.

Allinter-company balances and transactions between
entitiesin the economic entity,including any unrealised
profits orlosses, have been eliminated on consolidation.
Accounting policies of controlled entities have been
changed where necessarytoensure consistencies

with those policies applied by the parent entity.

Where controlled entities have entered orleft the
economic entity during the year, their operating results
have beenincluded/excluded from the date control was
obtained or until the date control ceased.

Non-controllinginterests, being the equityin a controlled
entity not attributable, directly orindirectly, to a parent,
arereported separately within the equity section of

the consolidated statement of financial position and
statement of other comprehensiveincome. The non-
contrallinginterestsinthe net assets comprise their
interests at the date of the original business combination
and their share of changesin equity since that date.

b. Income Tax

Theincome tax expense (benefit) for the year
comprises currentincome tax expense and deferred
tax expense (benefit).

Currentincome tax expense charged to the profit orloss
is the tax payable on taxableincome calculated using the
applicableincome tax rates enacted, or substantially
enacted, as at reporting date. Current taxliabilities
(assets) are therefore measured at the amount expected
to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant taxation
authority. Deferredincome tax expense reflects
movementsin deferred taxasset and deferred taxliability
balances during the year as wellas unused taxlosses.

Deferred taxassets andliabilities are ascertained
based on the temporarydifferences arising between the
tax base of the assets andliabilities and their carrying
amountsinthe financial statements. Deferred tax assets
alsoresult where amounts have been fully expensed but
future tax deductions are available. No deferredincome
tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an
asset oraliahility, excluding a business comhination,
where thereisnoeffect onaccounting or taxable
profitorloss.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONTINUED

Deferredtaxassetsorliabilities are calculated at the tax
ratesthat are expected toapply to the period when the
assetis realised or theliabilityis settled, based on the tax
ratesenacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.
Their measurement also reflects the mannerin which
management expects torecover or settle the carrying
amount of the related asset orliability.

Deferredtaxassets relating totemporary differences
and unused taxlosses are recognised only to the extent
thatitis probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the benefits of the deferred
taxasset can be utilised.

Where temporary differences existin relation to
investmentsin subsidiaries, branches, associates
andjoint ventures, deferred tax assets andliabilities
are not recognised where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference can be controlled and
itis not probable that the reversal will occurin the
foreseeable future.

Current taxassets andliabilities are offset wherea
legally enforceable right of set-off exists and itisintended
that the net settlement or simultaneous realisation and
settlement of the respective asset andliability will occur.
Deferredtaxassets andliabilities are offset where a
legally enforceable right of set-off exists, the deferred
tax assets andliabilities relate toincome taxeslevied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities whereitisintended
that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and
settlement of the respective asset andliability will occur
in future periodsin which significant amounts of deferred
tax assetsorliabilities are expected to be recovered

or settled.

Tax Consolidation

Desane Group Holdings Limited andits wholly owned
Australian controlled entities have formed anincome
tax consolidated group under tax consolidation
legislation. Each entityin the Group recognisesits own
current and deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such
taxes are measured using the ‘stand-alone taxpayer’
approach to allocation. Current taxliabilities (assets)
anddeferredtax assetsarising from unused tax
losses and tax creditsin the controlled entities are
immediately transferred to the head entity. The Group
notified the Australian Taxation Office that it had
formed anincome tax consolidated group to apply from
1July 2003. The tax consolidated group has entered
ataxfundingarrangement whereby each companyin
the Group contributes to theincome tax payable by the
Groupin proportion to their contribution to the Group’s
taxableincome.
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c. Development Property Held for Sale

Land held for development and saleis measured at the
lower of their carryingamount and net realisable value
less costs tosell. Costincludes the cost of acquisition,
development, borrowing costs and holding costs until

the completion of development. Gains andlosses are
recognisedin the statement of comprehensive income on
the settlement of a contract of sale when the significant
risks and rewards and effective control over the property
is passed tothe purchaser.

The carrying valueincludes revaluations applied to the
asset during the period the property was classified as
aninvestment property.

d. Plant and Equipment

Each class of plant and equipmentis carried at cost
or fair valueless, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation andimpairmentlosses.

Plant and equipment are measured on a cost basis.

The carrying amount of plant and equipmentis reviewed
annually by directors toensureitis notin excess of the
recoverahble amount from these assets. The recoverable
amountis assessed on the basis of the expected net cash
flows that will be received from the assets employment
and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash

flows have been discounted to their present values
indetermining recoverable amounts.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of plant and equipmentis
depreciated on a straightline basis over their usefullives
tothe economicentity commencing from the time the asset
is held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of
depreciable assets are:

CLASS OF FIXED ASSET DEPRECIATION RATE

Maotor vehicles 15%

Plant and equipment 5%-33%

The assets’ residual values and usefullives are reviewed
and adjustedif appropriate, at each reporting date.

Anasset’s carrying valueis written downimmediately
toits recoverable amountif the asset’s carrying amount
isgreater thanitsestimated recoverable amount.

Gains andlosses ondisposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.
These gains andlosses areincludedin the
consolidated statement of profit andloss and other
comprehensiveincome.

e. Investment Properties

Investment properties, comprising freehold office and
industrial complexes, are held to generatelong-term
rental yields. Alltenantleases areonanarm’slength
basis. The fair value modelis applied to allinvestment
property and each propertyisreviewed at each reporting
date. The fair valueis defined as the price at which the
property could be exchanged between knowledgeable,
willing partiesinanarmslength transaction. Each
propertyisindependently valued every three years by
registered valuers who have recognised and appropriate
professional qualifications, and recent experience

in thelocation and category ofinvestment property

being valued. Changes tofair value are recordedin

the statement of profitandloss as revenue from non
operating activities.

Investment properties under construction are measured
at thelower of fair value and net realisable value. Cost
includes the cost of acquisition, development andinterest
on financing during development. Interest and other
holding charges after practical completion are expensed
asincurred.

Investment properties are maintained at a high
standardand, as permitted by accounting standards, the
properties are not depreciated.

Rentalrevenue from theleasing of investment properties
isrecognisedin the statement of profitandloss and
other comprehensiveincomein the periodsin which it
isreceivable, as thisrepresents the pattern of service
rendered through the provision of the properties. All
tenantleasesareonanarmslength basis.

f. Leases

Financeleases are capitalised by recognising an asset
and aliability at thelower of the amounts equal to the
fair value of theleased property or the present value of
the minimumlease payments,including any guaranteed
residual values. Lease payments are allocated between
the reduction of theleaseliability and theleaseinterest
expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of their estimated usefullives or the
lease term.

Lease payments for operatingleases, where substantially
allthe risks and benefits remain with thelessor, as
recognised as expensesin the periodsin which they
areincurred.

Leaseincentives under operatingleases are recognised
as aliability and amortised on a straightline basis over
thelease term.

g. Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financialliahilities are recognised
when the entity becomes a party tothe contractual
provisions to theinstrument. For financial assets, this
isequivalent to the date that the entity commitsitself to
either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie. trade date
accountingis adopted).

Financialinstruments areinitially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs, except where theinstrument

is classified “at fair value through profit orloss”,in
which case transaction costs are expensed to profit
orlossimmediately.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financialinstruments are subsequently measured at fair
value,amortised cost using the effectiveinterest method,
or cost.

The Group hasinterestsinthe following financial assets:
i) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturityinvestments are non-derivative
financial assets that have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments, anditis the Group’sintention
tohold theseinvestments to maturity. Interestincomeis
recognisedin profit orloss when received. On maturity,
the financial assetis derecognised and re-classified as
cash at bank.

h. Impairment of Assets

At eachreportingdate, the group reviews the carrying
values of its tangible assets to determine whether there
isanyindication that those assets have beenimpaired.
The assessment willinclude the consideration of external
andinternal sources of information. If such anindication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the
higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in
use,iscomparedtothe asset’s carrying value. Any excess
of the asset’s carrying value overits recoverable amount
isexpensed tothe statement of profitandloss and other
comprehensiveincome.
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OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONTINUED

i. Investments in Associates

Associates are companiesin which the Group has
significantinfluence. Significantinfluenceis the power
to participatein the financial and operating policy
decisions of the entity butis not control orjoint control
of those policies.

Profits andlosses resulting from transactions between
the Group and the assaociate are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’sinterestinthe associate.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceedsitsinterestin the associate, the Group
discontinues recognisingits share of furtherlosses
unlessit hasincurredlegal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. When the
associate subsequently makes profits, the Group will
resume recognisingits share of those profits once

its share of the profits equals the share of thelosses
not recognised.

Investmentsinassociate companies are recognisedin
the financial statements by applying the equity method of
accounting, whereby theinvestmentisinitially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
changeinthe Group’s share of net assets of the associate
company. Inaddition, the Group’s share of the profit
orloss of the associateisincludedin the Group’s profit
orloss.

j. Interests in Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements represent the contractual sharing
of control between partiesin abusiness venture

where unanimous decisions about relevant activities
arerequired.Joint venture operations represent
arrangements wherebyjoint operators maintain direct
interestsineach asset and exposure to each liability of
thearrangement. The Group’sinterestsin the assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint operations are
includedin the respectivelineitems of the consolidated
financial statements.

Gains andlosses resulting from sales to ajoint operation
arerecognisedtothe extent of the other party’sinterest.
When the Group makes a purchase from ajoint operation,
it does not recogniseits share of the gains andlosses
from the joint arrangement untilit resells the goods and
servicestoathird party.
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k. Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits

Provisionis made for the Group’s obligation for short-
term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the
annual reporting periodin which the employees render
the related service,including wages, salaries and sick
leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at
the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when
the obligationis settled.

The Group’s obligations for short-term employee
benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are
recognised as part of current trade and other payables
in the statement of financial position. The Group’s
obligations for employees’ annualleave andlong service
leave entitlements are recognised as provisionsin the
statement of financial position.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits

Provisionis made for employees’ long serviceleave and
annualleave entitlements not expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual
reporting periodin which the employees render the
related service. Otherlong-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the expected
future payments to be made to employees. Expected
future paymentsincorporate anticipated future wage
and salarylevels, durations of service and employee
departuresand arediscounted at rates determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have maturity

dates that approximate the terms of the obligations.
Anyremeasurements for changesinassumptions of
obligations for otherlong-term employee benefits are
recognisedin profitorlossin the periodsin which the
changes occur.

The Group’s obligations forlong-term employee benefits
are presented asnon-current provisionsinits statement
of financial pasition, except where the Group does

not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
foratleast 12 months after the end of the reporting
period,in which case the obligations are presented as
current provisions.

1. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has alegal ar
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for
whichitis probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

m.Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentsinclude cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within short-term borrowingsin currentliabilities on the
statement of financial position.

n. Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from the rendering of property servicesis
recognised upon delivery of the service tocustomers.

Investment property revenueis recognised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term so as to reflect
aconstant periodic rate of return on the netinvestment.

Revenue from sale of properties held for resale and non-
current property or otherassetsis brought toaccount
on the settlement of acontract of sale.

Interest revenueis recognised onaproportional basis
takingintoaccount theinterest rates applicable to the
financial assets.

Dividend revenueis recognised when the right to receive
adividend has been established. Dividends received from
associates andjoint venture entities are accounted for
inaccordance with the equity method of accounting.

Allrevenueis stated net of the amount of goods and
services tax (GST).

0. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivablesinclude amounts due from
customers for goods sold and services performedin the
ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to
be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period are classified as current assets. All other
receivables are classified as non-current assets.

p. Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent theliabilities for
goods and services received by the entity that remain
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance
isrecognised as acurrentliability with the amounts
normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

g. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to prepare for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
theirintended use or sale.

Allother borrowing costs are expensedin the periodin
which they areincurred.

r. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred
isnot recoverable from the Australian Tax Office.In
these circumstances the GSTis recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part ofanitem of the
expense. Receivables and payablesin the balance sheet
are showninclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presentedin the cash flow statement on
agross basis, except for the GST component ofinvesting
and financial activities, which are disclosed as operating
cash flows.

s. Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative
figures have been adjusted toconform tochangesin
the presentationin the financial year. When the Group
retrospectively applies an accounting policy and makes
aretrospective restatement or reclassifiesitemsinits
financial statement, an additional (third) statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the preceding
periodin addition tothe minimum comparative financial
statementis presented.

t. Rounding of Amounts

The parent entity has applied the relief available to it
under ASIC Class Order 98/100. Accordingly,amountsin
the financial statements and directors’ report have been
rounded off to the nearest $1,000.

u. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial reports requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amountsin the
financial reports. Management basesits judgements
and estimates on historical experience and other
various factorsit believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances, but which areinherently uncertain and
unpredictable, the results of which form the basis of the
carrying value of assets andliabilities. The resulting
accounting estimates may differ from actual results
under different assumptions and conditions.
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Key estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing
adjustment with the next financial year to the carrying
amounts of assets andliahbilities recognisedin these
financial reports are:

i) Impairment — property valuations

Criticaljudgements are made by the Groupin respect of
the fair values of investment properties. The fair value of
theseinvestments are reviewed regularly by management
with reference toexternalindependent property
valuations and market conditions existing at reporting
date, using generally accepted market practices.

Then criticalassumptions underlying management’s
estimates of fair values are those relating to the passing
rent, market rent, occupancy, capitalisation rate,
terminalyield and discount rate. If thereis any changein
these assumptions or economic conditions, the fair value
of the propertyinvestments may differ. Assumptions
usedin valuation of propertyinvestments are disclosed
innote 13.

ii) Impairment — general

The Group assessesimpairment at the end of each
reporting period by evaluating conditions and events
specifictothe Group that may beindicative of impairment
triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are
reassessed using value-in-use calculations which
incorporate various key assumptions.

iii) Carrying value of 68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle

As setoutinnote22,theabove propertyis subject
toaproposal by RMS toacquire the property for

the WestConnex project andis subject todispute

and contention. Desane has soughtlegal advice and
independent property, planning and business valuation
advice toensurethat alloptions are pursued and
shareholders’interests are protected.

As aconsequence, the totalamount of compensation
ultimately recoverable cannot be reasonably forecast at
the time of this report and accordingly, with the exception
of capitalised costs, the property has continued to be
carried forwardin the financial statements at the value
determined forlastyear.
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v. New Accounting Standards for Application
in Future Periods

Accounting Standards and Interpretationsissued by
the AASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to the
Group, together with anassessment of the potential
impact of such pronouncements on the Group when
adoptedin future periods, are discussed below:

AASB 9: Financial Instruments and associated
Amending Standards (applicable for annual reporting
periods commencing on or after 1January 2018).

This Standard will be applicable retrospectively
(subject to the provisions on hedge accounting
outlined below) and includes revised requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, revised recognition and derecognition
reqguirements for financialinstruments and simplified
requirements for hedge accounting.

The key changes that may affect the Group oninitial
applicationinclude certain simplifications to the
classification of financial assets, simplifications to
the accounting of embedded derivatives, upfront
accounting for expected creditloss, and the
irrevocable election torecognise gains andlosses an
investmentsin equityinstruments that are not held
for tradingin other comprehensiveincome. AASB

S alsointroduces anew model for hedge accounting
that will allow greater flexibility in the ability to hedge
risk, particularly with respect to hedges of non-
financialitems. Should the entity elect tochange its
hedge policiesinline with the new hedge accounting
requirements of the Standard, the application of such
accounting would belargely prospective.

Thedirectors anticipate that the adoptionof AASB 9

will have noimpact on the Group’s financial statements.

AASB15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(applicable to annual reporting periods commencing
onorafter1January 2018).

When effective, this Standard will replace the current
accounting requirements applicable to revenue with

a single, principles-based model. Except foralimited
number of exceptions, includingleases, the new
revenue modelin AASB 15 willapply to all contracts
with customers as wellas non-monetary exchanges
between entitiesin the sameline of business to
facilitate sales tocustomers and potential customers.

The core principle of the Standardis that an entity will
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services tocustomersinanamount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
tobe entitledin exchange for the goods or services. To
achieve this objective, AASB 15 provides the following
five-step process:

— identify the contract(s) with a customer;

— identify the performance obligationsin the
contract(s);

— determine the transaction price;

— allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligationsin the contract(s); and

- recogniserevenue when (or as) the performance
obligations are satisfied.

This Standard will require retrospective restatement,
as well as enhanced disclosures regarding revenue.

Thedirectors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 15

will have noimpact on the Group’s financial statements.

AASB 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1January 2019).

When effective, this Standard will replace the current
accounting requirements applicable toleasesin
AASBI117: Leasesandrelated Interpretations, AASB
16introduces a single lessee accounting model that
eliminates the reguirement forleases to be classified
as operating or financeleases.

The main changesintroduced by the new
Standardinclude:

recognition of a right-to-use asset andliability

for allleases (excluding short-termleases withless
than 12 months of tenure andleases relating tolow-
value assets);

depreciation of right-to-use assetsinline with AASB
116: Property, Plant and Equipmentin profit orloss
and unwinding of theliabilityin principal andinterest
components;

variahlelease payments that depend on anindex

or arateareincludedin theinitial measurement

of theleaseliability using theindex or rate at the
commencement date;

by applying a practical expedient, alesseeis permitted
toelect not to separate non-lease components and
instead account for allcomponents as alease;and

additional disclosure requirements.

The transitional provisions of AASB 16 allow alessee
toeither retrospectively apply the Standard to
comparativesinline with AASB 108 or recognise

the cumulative effect of retrospective application

as an adjustment toopening equity on the date of
initial application.

Thedirectors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 16
will have noimpact on the Group’s financial statements.

AASB2014-10: Amendments to Australian

Accounting Standards — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor andits Assaciate or
Joint Venture (applicable to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1January 2018, as deferred by
AASB2015-10: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Effective Date of Amendmentsto AASB 10
and AASB128).

This Standard amends AASB 10: Consolidated Financial
Statements with regards toaparentlosing control
over asubsidiary whichis not a “business’ as defined
in AASB 3: Business Combinationstoan associate or
joint venture, and requires that:

— againorloss (including any amounts in other
comprehensive income (OCI)) be recognised only
tothe extent of the unrelated investor’sinterest
in that associate orjoint venture;

— theremaining gainorloss be eliminated against the
carrying amount of theinvestmentin that associate
orjoint venture; and

— anygainorlossfromremeasuring the remaining
investmentin the former subsidiary at fair
value also be recognised only to the extent of the
unrelatedinvestor’sinterestin the associate or
joint venture. The remaining gain orloss should
be eliminated against the carrying amount of the
remaininginvestment.

The applicationof AASB 2014-10 will resultin a
changeinaccounting policies for transactions of loss
of control over subsidiaries (involving an associate
orjoint venture) that are businesses per AASB 3 for
which gains orlosses were previously recognised only
tothe extent of the unrelated investor’sinterest.

Thedirectors anticipate that the adoption of
AASB2014-10 will have noimpact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

NOTE 3: PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit before income tax from continuing operations includes the following specific expenses:

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016

NOTE $'000 $'000
Revenue from Continuing Operations
Property rentalincome 2,112 2,305
Property management fees 138 162
Property services 106 66
Property project management - 83
Total Revenue from Continuing Operations 2,356 2,616
Other Revenue
a.Dividend revenue from:
— other corporations - -
b.Interest revenue from:
— associated entities - -
— other related parties - -
— other persons 528 270
Total Other Revenue 528 270
Total Revenue 2,884 2,886
Other Income
Property development profit 168 4,548
Revaluationincrement — investment property held for resale (i) 5,139 -
Propertyinvestment — net revaluations 1,900 2,032
Total Other Income 7,207 6,580

i) Therevaluationincrement was realised on settlement of the sale of the property on31July 2017.
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2017 2016
NOTE $'000 $'000
Expenses
Auditors’ remuneration 6 71 70
Depreciation of plant and equipment 10 10
Finance costs:
— External 667 641
— Related entities - -
Transfer to/(from) provisions for:
- Employee entitlements 31 (3)
Rental expenses relating to operatingleases 63 64
Direct property expenditure frominvestment property generating rentalincome 379 166
NOTE 4: INCOME TAX EXPENSE
a. The components of tax expense comprise:
CONSOLIDATED GROUP
2017 2016
NOTE $'000 $'000
Current tax 2,752 528
Deferred tax 23 (609) 1,665
2,143 2,193
b. The prima facie tax on profit from ordinary activities
before income tax is reconciled to income tax as follows:
Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities
beforeincome taxat30% (2016:30%)
— consolidated group 2,157 2,178
Add:
Tax effect of:
— recoupment of prioryearlosses - -
— over provision for prior year tax - -
- other accruals/provisions (45) (16)
—other non-allowableitems 1 1
—otheritems notincludedin taxableincome 30 30
Income taxattributable to entity 2,143 2,193
The applicable weighted average effective tax rates 29.8% 30.0%

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future, is based on the assumption that no

adverse change will occur in the income tax legislation, the anticipation that the Group will derive sufficient future
assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and continue to comply with the conditions of deductibility

imposed by the law.
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NOTE 5: KEY PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

a. Names and position held of economic and parent entity key personnel
in office at any time during the financial year are:

KEY PERSONNEL POSITION

Prof.John B.Sheehan AM Chairman (non-executive director)

Mr Phil Montrone OAM Managing Director
Mr John W Bartholomew Director (non-executive)
Mr Rick Montrone Director — Head of Property

Mr Jack Sciara Company Secretaryand Chief Financial Officer

b. Compensation Practices
The board’s paolicy for determining the nature and amount of compensation of key personnel for the groupis as follows:

The compensation structure for key personnelis based on a number of factors,includinglength of service, particular
experience of theindividual concerned, and the overall performance of the company. Emploaymentis on a continuing basis the
terms of which are not expected tochangeintheimmediate future. Upon retirement key personnel are paid employee benefit
entitlements accrued to the date of retirement.

The company may terminate any employee without cause by providing adequate written notice or making paymentinlieu of
notice based on theindividual’s annual salary component. Termination payments are generally not payable on resignation or
dismissal for serious misconduct. Intheinstance of serious misconduct the company can terminate employment at any time.

Allremuneration packages are set atlevels that areintended to attract and retain executives capahble of managing the
economic entity’s operations. Refer note 5c.

c. Key Personnel Compensation

2017
POST

SHORT TERM EMPLOYMENT LONG TERM

BENEFITS BENEFITS BENEFIT

SALARY, FEES & SUPER- LONG
COMMISSIONS ANNUATION SERVICE TOTAL
KEY PERSONNEL $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
John B. Sheehan 66 - - 66
John W. Bartholomew 12 - - 12
Phil Montrone 258 58 - 316
Rick Montrone 250 24 - 274
Jack Sciara 162 15 - 177
748 97 - 845
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2016
POST
SHORT TERM EMPLOYMENT LONG TERM
BENEFITS BENEFITS BENEFIT
SALARY, FEES & SUPER- LONG
COMMISSIONS ANNUATION SERVICE TOTAL
KEY PERSONNEL $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
John B. Sheehan 64 = = 64
John W. Bartholomew 46 - - 46
Phil Montrone 247 63 - 310
Rick Montrone (appointed 04.11.2015) 199 19 — 218
Jack Sciara 163 15 - 178
719 97 - 816
d. Shareholdings
Number of shares held by parent entity directors and specified executives.
BALANCE RECEIVED AS OPTIONS NET CHANGE BALANCE
KEY PERSONNEL 30.06.16 COMPENSATION EXERCISED OTHER* 30.06.17
John B.Sheehan 131,559 - - 3,654 135,213
Phil Montrone 12,580,618 - - - 12,580,618
John Bartholomew 613,885 - - 16,971 630,856
Rick Montrone 52,269 - - 1,452 53,721
Jack Sciara 179,118 - - 19,480 198,598
13,557,449 - - 41,557 13,599,006

* “Net Change Other” referstoshares purchasedor sold during the financialyear,including shares received by participatingin the Dividend

Reinvestment Plan.
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NOTE 6: AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Remuneration of the auditor for the parent entity:
Michael Chau & Associates
—auditing or reviewing the financial report 7 7
— taxation services - -
GCC Business Assurance Pty Ltd
— auditing or reviewing the financial report 61 60
— taxation services S 3
71 70

NOTE 7: DIVIDENDS

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Dividends paid
a. Interim dividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, paid on 31 March 2017 837
Ordinary dividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, declared by the directors
from retained earnings payable on 6 October 2017 837
Special dividend of $0.10 franked, per share, declared by the directors
from retained earnings payable on 6 October 2017 3,718
Interimdividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, paid on 31 March 2016 823
Ordinaryfinaldividend of $0.0225 franked, per share, declared by the
Directors from retained earnings paid on 7 October 2016 830

NOTE 8: EARNINGS PER SHARE

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Reconciliation of earnings usedin the calculation of earnings per share
Operating profit afterincome tax 5,045 5,067

Reconciliation of weighted average numbers of ordinary shares usedin the calculation of earnings per share

CONSOLIDATED GROUP
2017 2016

Weighted average number of ordinary shares usedin the calculation of basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (cents per share)

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share)

37,190,900 36,905,259
13.57 13.73

13.57 13.73

b. The Group has a total $0.6m (2016 - $0.8m) franking credits available before the dividends for 2017 are provided.
The payment of the 2017 income tax of $2.7m will provide further available franking credits for the payment of the

special dividend and future dividends.
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Conversion, call, subscription or issue after 30 June 2017

Therehas beenno:
a.caonversion to, calls of, or subscription for ordinary shares; or
b.issues of potential ordinary shares;

since the reporting date and before the completion of these accounts.

NOTE 9: CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000

Cash at bankandin hand 286 126

Interest bearing short term deposits 9,136 15,623
9,422 15,749

The effectiveinterest rate on cash at bank was nil (2016 — nil).

The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits was an average of 2.9%

(2016 - 3.4%). These deposits have a weighted average maturity of 90 days.

Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shownin the cash flow statementis reconciled

toitemsin the balance sheet as follows:

Cashas above 9,422 15,749

Less: Bank overdraft (refer tonote 16) - =
9,422 15,749
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NOTE 10: CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
CONSOLIDATED GROUP

NOTE 13: CURRENT ASSETS
— INVESTMENT PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE

2017 2016

$'000 $'000

Trade receivables 54 33
Other receivables

— Easton Rozelle development — purchaser depaosits and settlement funds - 650

— Other - 2

54 685

NOTE 11: OTHER ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
a) Current Assets
Prepayments and GST receivables 134 108
b) Non Current Assets
Security deposit 1 1
Rentalincentives 3 7
4 8

NOTE 12: CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Held-to-maturity investments
Fixedinterest securities 2,201 1,451

The effective interest rate on fixed interest securities is an average of 7.0% pa.
These securities have a weighted average maturity of 280 days.

NOTE 13: CURRENT ASSETS
— DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY RECLASSIFIED AS CURRENT

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016

NOTE $'000 $'000

Easton Rozelle - Commercial Unit 3 - 460
68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle 13a 12,481 -
12,481 460
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2017 2016
NOTE $'000 $'000
7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove 13b 17,825 -
NOTE 13: NON-CURRENT ASSETS
— PROPERTIES
CONSOLIDATED GROUP
2017 2016
NOTE $'000 $'000
Investment properties:
68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle 13a - 12,250
7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove 13b - 12,500
13 Sirius Road, Lane Cove 13c 5,300 4,400
7 Sirius Road, Lane Cove 13d 6,800 5,600
12,100 34,750

Valuation overview

The basis of the directors’ valuation of the investment properties (non-current)is a fair market value as defined in note 1e.
Inarriving at their opinion, the directors have reviewed and adopted the following three approaches and methodologies:
1.Capitalisation of current net rentalincome;

2.Discounted cash flow (“DCF”);and

3.Direct comparison to market sales evidence.

The properties are being valued independently atleast every three years. The Group has no restrictions on the
realisability of aninvestment property nor any contractual obligations to construct, develop, perform, repair or enhance
aninvestment property.

a.Thedirectors’ valuation,asat30 June 2017. The Co-ownership Agreementisin place. Anindependent valuation was
undertakeninJune 2016 by a certified practicing valuation company, the directors have based the value of the property
atitscarryingvalue at that time.

b. The property has been sold, with settlement completed on31July 2017.

c.Thedirectors’ valuation,asat30June2017. Anindependent valuation was undertakenin June 2017 by a certified practicing
valuation company. The directors have based the value as per the valuation report.

d.Thedirectors’ valuationasat30June 2017. Anindependent valuation was undertakenin June 2017 by a certified practicing
valuation company. The directors have adopted the value as per the valuation report.

Development property:
CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
91 Thornton Drive, Penrith — at cost 4,154 _
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NOTE 13: NON-CURRENT ASSETS
- PROPERTIES CONTINUED

Investment Properties

2017

NOTE 14: NON-CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016

$'000 $'000

Office furniture and equipment — at cost 41 42
Less: Accumulated depreciation (15) (14)
26 28

Motor vehicles — at cost 2] 89
Less: Accumulated depreciation (22) (77)
7 12

Totalnon-current assets ) 40

ACQUI- INTEREST OTHER UNITS CARRYING
SITION CONSTRUC- CAPIT- CAPITAL SOLD/TO REVALU- VALUE
COST TION COST ALISED COSTS BE SOLD ATION 30.06.2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
13 Sirius Rd, Lane Cove 2,900 672 - 1,086 - 642 5,300
7 Sirius Rd, Lane Cove 2,950 1,137 - 268 - 2,445 6,800
5,850 1,808 - 1,354 - 3,087 12,100
2016
ACQUI- INTEREST OTHER UNITS CARRYING
SITION CONSTRUC- CAPIT- CAPITAL SOLD/TO REVALU- VALUE
COST TION COST ALISED COSTS BE SOLD ATION 30.06.2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
68-72 Lilyfield Rd, Rozelle 1,681 5,327 - 425 - 4,817 12,250
7-90rion Rd, Lane Cove 8,197 908 - 1,115 - 2,280 12,500
13 Sirius Rd, Lane Cave 2,900 672 - 895 - (67) 4,400
7 Sirius Rd, Lane Cove 2,950 1,137 - 259 - 1,254 5,600
15,728 8,044 - 2,694 - 8,284 34,750
Development Properties
2017
ACQUI- INTEREST OTHER UNITS CARRYING
SITION CONSTRUC- CAPIT- CAPITAL SOLD/TO REVALU- VALUE
COST TION COST ALISED COSTS BE SOLD ATION 30.06.2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
91 Thornton Dr, Penrith 4,154 - - - - - 4,154
4,154 = - - - - 4,154
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Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movementin the carryingamounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the
current financialyear:

MOTOR VEHICLES,
OFFICE FURNITURE

AND EQUIPMENT TOTAL
$'000 $'000

Consolidated Group 49
Balance at the beginning of year 40 40
Additions g 3
Disposals - -
Depreciation expense (10) (10)
Carryingamount at the end of the year 33 33

NOTE 15: CURRENT LIABILITIES - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000

Unsecured liabilities
Trade payables 93 158
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 320 308
413 466
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NOTE 16: BORROWINGS

a) Current
CONSOLIDATED GROUP
2017 2016
NOTE $'000 $'000

Secured:

Bank overdraft a - —

Secured Liabilities — Bank Loans

Finance for property — 68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle b 5,250 -

Finance for property — 7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove c 5,485 -

10,735 -

a. Bankoverdraft securedover Lane Cove properties (refer tonote 30).

b. First mortgage finance securedover 68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle property.

c. First mortgage finance secured over 7-39 Orion Road, Lane Cove property (note 13b). Covenantsimposed by mortgagor
require total debt not toexceed 65% of the property value and the net rentalis required to exceedinterest expense by at
least1.5times. The sale of the property was settled on31July 2017, theloan repaid and the mortgage discharged on that day
for the property.

d. Allcovenantsimposed on securedloan agreements have been adhered to, at alltimes within the financial year.

b) Non Current

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

Maturity Schedule

INTEREST
RATES
(AVERAGE) CONSOLIDATED GROUP
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
26July 2019 3.8% pa 11,340 11,340
26July 2019 3.8% pa 5,250 5,250
16,590 16,590

NOTE 17: CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
NOTE $'000 $'000

Secured Liabilities — Bank Loans
Finance for property — 68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle 16i - 5,250
Finance for property — 7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove 1611 - 5,485
Finance for property — 13 Sirius Road, Lane Cove 16iii 2,905 2,905
Finance for property — 7 Sirius Road, Lane Cove 16iv 2,950 2,950
5,855 16,590

i.

First mortgage finance secured over 68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle property (note 13a).

ii. First mortgage finance secured over 7—-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove property (note 13b). Covenantsimposed by mortgagor

require totaldebt not toexceed 65% of the property value and the net rentalis required to exceedinterest expense by at
least 1.5 times.

iii. First mortgage finance secured over 13 Sirius Road, Lane Cove property (note 13c). Covenantsimposed by mortgagor

require totaldebt not toexceed 65% of the property value and the net rentalis required to exceedinterest expense by at
least 1.5 times.

iv. First mortgage finance secured over 7 Sirius Road, Lane Cove property (note 13d). Covenants imposed by mortgagor

require totaldebt not toexceed 65% of the property value and the net rentalis required to exceedinterest expense by at
least 1.5 times.

v. Allcovenantsimposedon securedloanagreements have been met.
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2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Current company tax 2,767 528
Dividends 4,556 830
Employee entitlements* 50 30
7,373 1,388

* Movementrepresentsnetincreasein provision setaside.

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
NO NO
Number of employees at year end 4 5

NOTE 18: NON CURRENT LIABILITIES -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Security deposits 44 103

NOTE 19: NON CURRENT LIABILITIES -

PROVISIONS
CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Employeelong serviceleave entitlement* 27 18

* Movement represents provision set aside.

The provision for employee entitlements represent amounts accrued for annualleave andlong serviceleave.

The current position for the employee entitlementincludes the totalamount accrued for annualleave entitlement and
long serviceleave that have been vested due to employees having completed the required period of service.
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NOTE 20: ISSUED CAPITAL

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

37,190,900 (2016:36,905,259) Ordinary Shares fully paid

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
17,308 17,077

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016 2017 2016
SHARES SHARES $'000 $'000
Ordinary Shares Fully Paid
At beginning of the year 36,905,259 36,239,331 17,077 16,627
Shares Issued During the Year
Dividend reinvestment plan 285,641 665,928 231 450
Share purchase plan - - - -
Bonusissue = = - _
Ordinary Shares fully paid at reporting period 37,190,900 36,905,259 17,308 17,077

a. Movements in Ordinary Share Capital of the Company

285,6410rdinary Shares wereissued during 2017 (2016:665,928) from participationin the Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

b. Authorised Capital
500,000,000 Ordinary Shares of no par value.

c. Capital Management

Management controls the capital of the Groupin order to maintain a good debt to equity ratio, provide the shareholders with

adequate returns and ensure that the Group can fundits operations and continue as a going concern.

The Group’s debt and capitalinclude ordinary share capital and financialliabilities, supported by financial assets.

There arenoexternallyimposed capital requirements.

Management effectively manages the Group’s capital by assessing the Group’s financial risks and adjustingits capital
structureinresponse tochangesintheserisksandinthe market. These responsesinclude the management of debtlevels,

distributions to shareholders and shareissues.

There have been no significant changesinthe strategy adopted by management to controland manage the capital of the Group

since the prioryear.

NOTE 21: RETAINED EARNINGS

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Retained earnings at beginning of financial year 13,473 10,060
Net profit attributable to members of parent entity 5,045 5,067
Dividends provided for or paid (5,392) (1,654)
Retained earnings at end of financial year 13,126 13,473
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NOTE 22: INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

In September 1996, a controlled entity enteredintoaco-ownership agreement referred toas the Lilyfield Road Joint Venture
topurchase apropertyasset for highest and best use. The controlled entityhasa70% interestinthe assetsandincome of
thisjoint venture. The co-ownership agreementisin place. Vatingis by unanimous resolution by alljoint venture members.
The share of net assets employedin thejoint ventureisincludedin the controlled entity’s statement of financial position
under the following classifications:

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Current Assets
Cash 17 "
Trade and other receivables 51 67
Development property reclassified as current 12,481 -
Non-current Assets
Development property - 12,250
Total Assets 12,549 12,328
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 30 35
Short term borrowings 5,250 -
Non-current Liabilities
Deferred taxliability 2,395 2,363
Long-term borrowings - 5,250
Total Liabilities 7,675 7,648
Equity 4,874 4,680
Output 444 847
Net operating profit beforeincome tax (54) 507
Gain/(loss) from the revaluation of development property - 139
Income tax applicable to operating profit 17 (194)
Net profit/(loss) afterincome tax of joint venture (37) 452

Refer note 13afor details of valuation methodology. The joint venture has no contingentliabilities.
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NOTE 22: INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED

Asdisclosedin Desane’s ASXannouncement dated 4 August 2017, the Group has received a proposed acquisition offer

of $18.4m for the property (Desane’s 70% share being $12.8m) from the Roads and Maritime Services (“RMS”).

The RMS also notified, initsinitial correspondence, an offer of $1.1m for business disturbance to cover the costs of legal fees,

valuations, disbursements and stamp duty.

Subseguent to the offer, the RMSissued a Proposed Acquisition Notice (‘PAN”) to Desanein accordance with the Land

Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act, 1991 (*'the Act”), confirming the compulsory acquisition of the property would be
gazettedonorabout1September2017. Thelegal effect of the PAN, if validlyissued,is to extinguish Desane’sinterestin the

property and convert Desane’s andits30% joint venture partner’sinterestin the property toaclaim for compensation.

Desane anditsjoint venture partner soughtindependent expert town planning and valuation advice and on the basis of this
advice, haslodged a statutory claim for compensation with the RMS in excess of $100m, to preserveitslegal rights pursuant

tothe Act.

Furtherlegaladvice from former Federal Courtjudge, the Hon. Ron Merkel QC, confirmed Desane’s filing with the Supreme

Court of NSW urgent proceedings, seeking relief that the State of New South Wales, the RMS and Sydney Motorway

Corporation (“SMC”) be restrained from acting upon or taking any step, in reliance upon the Proposed Acquisition Notice
(“PAN”)issued by RMS to Desane dated 26 May 2017. Desane has also sought on a final basis a declaration that the PAN was
invalid and that the notice be set aside. The matteris scheduled to be heardin the Supreme Court of NSW on 20 November 2017.

The Directorsintend topursue allavenues that are deemed necessary toprotect the asset and secure the best possible

outcome forits shareholders.

At the date of this report the final outcome of proceedings cannot be predicted or forecast. Consequently with the
exception of capitalised costs, the property has continued to be valued at the carrying amount determined forlastyear’s

financial statements.

NOTE 23: DEFERRED TAXES

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
NOTE $'000 $'000
Non-current
Deferred taxliability comprises:
Tax allowances relating to property and equipment 1,065 1,524
Revaluation ofinvestment properties 2,372 2,502
Provisions (45) (25)
Other 135 135
3,527 4,136
Reconciliation
Gross Movement
The overallmovementin the deferred taxaccountis as follows:
Opening balance 4,136 2,471
Charge to statement of profit andloss 4 (609) 1,665
Closing balance 3,527 4,136
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CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Deferred Tax Liability
Tax allowance relating to property and equipment
Opening balance 1,524 1,415
Adjustment toprevious year’s provision - -
Charged tothe statement of profit andloss (459) 109
Closing balance 1,065 1,524
Revaluation ofinvestment properties
Opening balance 2,502 2,752
Net revaluationduring the current period 570 610
Transferson property sale (700) (860)
Closing balance 2,372 2,502
Deferred Tax Assets
Tax andcapitallosses
Opening balance - (1,809)
Tax and capitallosses utilised - 1,809
Closing balance - -
Provisions
Opening balance (25) (22)
Credited to statement of profit andloss (20) (3)
Closing balance (45) (25)
Other
Opening balance 185 135
Charged to statement of profitandloss - -
Closing balance 135 135
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NOTE 24: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Financial Risk Management

The group’s financialinstruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, mortgage loans with bankinginstitutions, accounts
receivable and payable, andloans toand from controlled entities.

Desane’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for the monitoring and managing of financial risk exposures
on amonthly basis.

The main risks the groupis exposed to throughits financialinstruments areliquidity risk andinterest rate risk.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the group might encounter difficultyin settlingits debts or otherwise meeting
its obligations related to financialliabilities. Desane manages this risk through the following mechanisms:

Preparing forwardlooking cash flow analysisin relation toits operational,investing and financing activities;
Monitoring undrawn credit facilities;

Obtaining funding from a variety of sources; and

Investing surplus cash with major financialinstitutions.

Interest Rate Risk

Exposuretointerest rate risks arises onfinancial assets and financialliabilities recognised at the end of the reporting period
whereby a future changeininterest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financialinstruments.

Interest rateriskis managed using a mix of fixed and floating rate debt. At 30 June 2017, approximately 100% of the Group’s
debtis with afloatinginterest rate and any balanceis fixedinterest rate debt.

The group entity’s exposure tointerest rateriskand the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods are set
outinthe following table (note 24d). Forinterest rates applicable to each class of asset or liability, refer toindividual notes
tothe financial statements. Exposures arise predominantly from assets andliabilities bearing variableinterest rates as the
consolidated entityintends to hold fixed rate assets andliabilities to maturity.

The contractual maturities of the financialliabilities are set out below. The amounts represent the future undiscounted
principal andinterest cash flows relating to the amounts drawn at reporting date.

b. Credit Risk Exposure

The credit risk on financialassets of the consolidated entity which has been recognisedin the statement of financial position
is generally the carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debts.

The consolidated group does not have any material credit risk exposure toany single receivable or group of receivables under
financialinstruments enteredinto by the economic entity.

c. Net Fair Values
On Balance Sheet:

The net fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetaryfinancialassets and financialliabilities
approximates their carrying value.

Off Balance Sheet:

The parent entity and certain controlled entities have potential financialliabilities which may arise from certain
contingencies disclosedin note 31. No materiallosses are anticipatedin respect of any of these contingencies.

d. Carrying Amount and Net Fair Values

Thereis no materialdifference between the carryingamounts and the net fair values of financial assets andliahilities.
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2017
FLOATING FIXED FIXED
INTEREST INTEREST INTEREST
FLOATING MATURING MATURING MATURING NON
INTEREST WITHIN WITHIN WITHIN INTEREST
NOTE RATE 1-5YEARS 1YEAR 1-5YEARS BEARING TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash anddeposits 9 - - 9,422 - - 9,422
Receivables 10,11,13 - - - 188 188
Otherfinancialassets 12 - - 2,201 - - 2,201
- - 11,623 - 188 11,811
Weighted averageinterest rates -% -% 3.7% -% -% 3.7%
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other creditors 15,18 - - - - 456 456
Interest bearingliabilities 16 - 16,590 - - - 16,590
- 16,590 - - 456 17,046
Weighted averageinterest rate -% 3.8% -% -% -% 3.8%
Net financial assets (liabilities) - (16,590) 11,623 - (268) (5,235)
57
2016 o
FLOATING FIXED FIXED
INTEREST INTEREST INTEREST
FLOATING MATURING MATURING MATURING NON
INTEREST WITHIN WITHIN WITHIN INTEREST
NOTE RATE 1-5YEARS 1YEAR 1-5YEARS BEARING TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cashanddeposits 9 - - 15,749 - - 15,748
Receivables 10,11,13 - - - - 1,254 1,254
Otherfinancialassets 12 - - 1,451 - - 1,451
- - 17,200 - 1,254 18,454
Weighted averageinterest rates - - 3.4% - - 3.4%
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other creditors 15,18 - - - - 569 569
Interest bearingliabilities 16 - 16,590 - - - 16,590
- 16,590 - - 569 17,159
Weighted average interest rate - 3.8% - - - 3.8%
Net financial assets (liabilities) = (16,590) 17,200 = 685 1,295
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NOTE 24: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Sensitivity Analysis

The following tableillustrates sensitivities to the Group’s exposure tochangesininterest rates. The tableindicates the
impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been affected by changein the relevant risk

variable that management considers to be reasonahbly possible. These sensitivities assume that the movementin a particular
variableisindependent of other variables.

The net effective variableinterest rate borrowings (floatinginterest rate) expose the Group tointerest rate risk which will
impact future cash flows andinterest charges, areindicatedin the above figures. Allinterest bearingliabilities and their
weightedinterest rateis shownin note 24(d).

There arenofinancialliabilities maturing over 5years.

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

PROFIT EQUITY
$'000 $'000
Year ended 30 June 2017 +/- 222 +/- 222

—interest rate sensitivity calculated at an average of +/- 2%pa.

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

PROFIT EQUITY
$'000 $'000
Year ended 30 June 2016 +/-332 +/—332

—interest rate sensitivity calculated at an average of +/- 2% pa.

NOTE 25: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Alltransactions are under normal commercial terms and conditions.
The Group’s main related parties are as follows:
i. Key management personnel:

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or
indirectly,including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity, are considered key management personnel.

ii.Joint venture entities accounted for under the proportion method:

The Group has aninterestinoneventure. Theinterestinthisjoint ventureisaccounted forinthe consolidated financial
statements of the Group using the proportion method of accounting. For details of theinterest heldin joint venture entities,
refertonote2e.

iii. Other related parties

Other related partiesinclude entities controlled by the parent entity and entities over which key management personnel
have control.
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Related parties of Desane Group Holdings Limited (parent entity) fallinto the following categories:
a. Controlled Entities
Information relating tocontrolled entitiesis set outin note 31. Other transactions between related parties consist of:

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016

$'000 $'000
Desane Properties Pty Ltd: Dividend paid 500 -
Desane Contracting Pty Ltd: Dividend paid 623 4,546
b. Joint Ventures
Administration fee received from Lilyfield Road Joint Venture 12 12
Interest received from Lilyfield Road Joint Venture 53 42
Consulting fee received from Lilyfield Road Joint Venture 94 54

c. Directors

The names of the persons who were directors of the parent entity during the financial year are as follows:
Phil Montrone
John Blair Sheehan
John William Bartholomew
Rick Montrone

Information onthe remuneration of directors and executivesis set outin note 5.

Trafalgar Contracting Pty Ltd, whichis a company owned by Mr Phil Montraone’s brother, has sub-let a portion of its rental
premises to Desane Group Holdings Ltd at market rental rates.

The Managing Director and all executives are permanent employees of Desane Group Holdings Limited.

Other thanthe above transactions, nodirector has enteredintoa material contract since the end of the previous financial
year and there were no material contractsinvolving directors’interests existing at year-end. The directors participatein
bonus and other shareissues under the same terms and conditions as other shareholders. Particulars of directors’interests
in ordinary shares and options are disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

NOTE 26: COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

At30June2017,the Group had not enteredintoany contractualcommitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment or any other affairs (2016: Nil).

NOTE 27: SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS

Inthe case of employees of the holding company, the company contributed 9.50% of each member’s salaryinto the fund
nominated by each member. Group companies contribute a minimum amount equal to 9.50% of each member’s salary, plus the
costof theinsurance coverage,if required, toinsure the provision of all benefits tothe Fund. The benefits provided by the
accumulation fund are based on the contributions andincome thereon held by the Fund on behalf of the member. The 3.50%
contribution made by group companiesislegally enforceable.

The company andits controlled entities have alegally enforceable obligation to contribute to the funds.

Thedirectors arenotaware of any other changesincircumstances which would have a materialimpact on the overall
financial position of the funds.

Employer contributions to the plans; consolidated $107,072 (2016 — $108,327), parent entity $83,315 (2016 — $89,411).
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NOTE 28: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a. The parent entity has given a letter of support to each of its two controlled entities, to the effect that it will not
require repayment of the loan funds advanced in the coming year (refer note 31(ii)).

The shareholders’ fundsasat30June 2017,in the controlled entities concerned were:

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Desane Contracting Pty Limited — net assets 98 918
Desane Properties Pty Limited — net assets 15,559 9,738

b. 68-72 Lilyfield Road Property

First mortgage security over the property has been provided to finance borrowings of $7,500,000 as at 30 June 2017.In
addition, the parent entity, together with the other co-owner, have unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, the
securedloan and bank overdraft.

c. 7-9 Orion Road Property

The parent entity has guaranteed the repayment of the first mortgage finance secured over the Orion Road property (note 16).
Guarantee was released on sale of the propertyon31July 2017.

d. 7 Sirius Road Property

The parent entity has guaranteed the repayment of the first mortgage finance secured over the 7 Sirius Road property
(note 16).

e. 13 Sirius Road Property

The parent entity has guaranteed the repayment of the first mortgage finance secured over the 13 Sirius Road property
(note 16).

NOTE 29: OPERATING SEGMENTS - CONSOLIDATED GROUP

Segment Information
Identification of Reportable Segments

The Group hasidentifiedits operating segments based on theinternal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board
of Directorsinassessing performance and determining the allocation of resources.

Reportable segments disclosed are based on aggregating operating systems where the segments are considered to have
similar economic characteristics and are also similar to the operations and or services provided by the segment.

Types of Operations and Services by Segment

Revenueis derived by theindustry segments from the following activities:
i. PropertyDevelopment
Development projects (residential, commercial orindustrial).

ii. PropertyInvestment
Rentalincome from prime real estateinvestments.

iii. Property Project Management and Resale

Property project management and resale of commercial,industrial and residential properties, principallyin
Sydney metropolitan areas.

iv. Property Services
Property andrelated services.

Accounting Policies Adopted

Unless stated otherwise, allamounts reported to the Board of Directors, with respect tooperating segments, are determined
in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adoptedin the annual financial statements of the Group.

Segment Assets

Where an assetisusedacross multiple segments, the assetis allocated tothat segment that receives majority economic
value from that asset.Inthe majority ofinstances, segment assets are clearlyidentifiable on the basis of their nature and
physicallocation.
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Segment Liabilities

Liabilities are allocated to segments where thereis adirect nexus between theincurrence of theliability and the cperations
of the segment. Borrowings and taxliabilities are generally considered torelate to the Group as a whole and are not allocated.
Segmentliabilitiesinclude trade and other payables and certain direct borrowings.

Unallocated Items
The followingitems of revenue, expenses, assets andliabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not
considered part of the core operations of any segment:
Net gains on disposal of available for saleinvestments;
Impairment of assets and other non recurringitems of revenue or expenses;
Income tax expense;
Deferredtax assets andliabilities;
Current taxliahbilities;
Other financialliabilities;
Retirement benefit obligations;and
Administration expenses.

Geographical Segments
The consolidated group operatesin one geographical segment being New South Wales, Australia.
Inter-segment Transactions

Inter-segment pricingis based on what would be realisedin the event the sale was made to an external party
atarms-length basis.

2017
PROPERTY
PROJECT
PROPERTY PROPERTY MANAGE- CONSOLI- 61
INVEST- DEVELOP- MENT AND PROPERTY PLANT AND DATED =
MENT MENT RESALE SERVICES EQUIPMENT OTHER GROUP
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
External sales 2,112 645 - 244 - 528 3,529
Other segments - - - = = = -
Total revenue 2,112 645 - 244 - 528 3,529
Segment result 8,353 (191) - 244 - 528 8,934
Unallocated expenses (1,079)
Finance costs (667)
Profit/(loss) beforeincome tax 7,188
Income tax 609
Income tax expense (2,752)
Profit/(loss) afterincome tax 5,045
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NOTE 29: OPERATING SEGMENTS - CONSOLIDATED GROUP CONTINUED

2017
PROPERTY
PROJECT
PROPERTY PROPERTY MANAGE- CONSOLI-
INVEST- DEVELOP- MENT AND PROPERTY PLANTAND DATED
SEGMENT ASSETS MENT MENT RESALE SERVICES EQUIPMENT OTHER GROUP
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2016 opening balance 34,750 460 - - - 18,041 53,251
Unallocated Assets
Deferredtaxassets
Segment Asset Increases/
(Decreases) for the Period
Acquisitions 4,154 4,154
Proceeds from
sale/depreciation (645) (645)
Revaluations/(devaluations) 1,800 1,900
Capital expenditures 617 617
Development expenditures 18 18
Asset held for sale
Revaluationincrement
—investment property
held for resale 5,139 5,139
Development profit realised 167 167
Net movementin
other segments (6,193) (6,193)
42,406 4,154 - - - 11,848 58,408
Unallocated Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
Total Group Assets 58,408
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2017
PROPERTY
PROJECT
PROPERTY PROPERTY MANAGE- CONSOLI-
INVEST- DEVELOP- MENT AND PROPERTY PLANTAND DATED
SEGMENT LIABILITIES MENT MENT RESALE SERVICES EQUIPMENT OTHER GROUP
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2016 opening balance 16,590 - - - - 1,975 18,565
Unallocated Liabilities
Deferredtaxliabilities 4,136
Segment Liabilities Increases/
(Decreases) for the Period
Repayments
New borrowings
Net movementin
other segments 5,882 5,882
16,590 7,857 28,583
Unallocated Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (609)
Total Group Liabilities 27,974
63
2016 o
PROPERTY
PROJECT
PROPERTY PROPERTY MANAGE- CONSOLI-
INVEST- DEVELOP- MENT AND PROPERTY PLANTAND DATED
MENT MENT RESALE SERVICES EQUIPMENT OTHER GROUP
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
External sales 2,305 28,368 83 228 - 270 31,254
Other segments - - - - - - -
Total revenue 2,305 28,368 83 228 - 270 31,254
Segment result 3,850 4,548 83 228 - 270 8,979
Unallocated expenses (1,078)
Finance costs (641)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 7,260
Income tax expense (2,193)
Profit/(loss) afterincome tax 5,067
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NOTE 29: OPERATING SEGMENTS - CONSOLIDATED GROUP CONTINUED

2016
PROPERTY
PROJECT
PROPERTY PROPERTY MANAGE- CONSOLI-
INVEST- DEVELOP- MENT AND PROPERTY PLANTAND DATED
SEGMENT ASSETS MENT MENT RESALE SERVICES EQUIPMENT OTHER GROUP
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2015 opening balance 32,660 20,689 - - - 7,693 61,042
Unallocated Assets
Deferredtaxassets
Segment Asset Increases/
(Decreases) for the Period
Acquisitions -
Proceeds from sale/
depreciation (28,368) (28,368)
Revaluations/(devaluations) 2,032 2,032
Capital expenditures 58 58
Development expenditures - 3,591 3,591
Development profit realised 4,548 4,548
Net movement
inother segments 10,348 10,348
34,750 460 - - - 18,041 53,251
Unallocated Assets -
Deferred Tax Assets -
Total Group Assets 53,251
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2016
PROPERTY
PROJECT
PROPERTY PROPERTY MANAGE- CONSOLI-
INVEST- DEVELOP- MENT AND PROPERTY PLANTAND DATED
SEGMENT LIABILITIES MENT MENT RESALE SERVICES EQUIPMENT OTHER GROUP
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2015 opening balance 16,590 9,844 - - - 5,450 31,884
Unallocated Liabilities
Deferredtaxliabilities 2,471
Segment Liabilities Increases/
(Decreases) for the Period
Repayments (11,703) (11,703)
New borrowings 1,859 1,859
Net movement
inother segments (3,475) (3,475)
16,590 - - - - 1,975 21,036
Unallocated Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,665
Total Group Liabilities 22,701
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NOTE 30: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

a. Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Profit After Income Tax

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

NOTE 31: PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES

The followinginformation has been extracted from the books and records of the parent entity and has been preparedin
accordance with Accounting Standards.

PARENT ENTITY

2017 2016

$'000 $'000
Profit/(loss) afterincome tax 5,045 5,067
Non-cash flows in profit/(loss)
Depreciation and amortisation 10 10
(Gain)/loss on asset revaluation (1,900) (2,032)
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decreasein trade receivables 1,090 1,997
(Increase)/decreasein other receivables and other assets (4,904) 20,229
(Increase)/decreasein prepayments (26) 108
(Decrease)/increasein trade payments and accruals (112) (1,611)
(Decrease)/increasein other payables - (2,575)
(Decrease)/increasein provisions 2,274 631
Increase/(decrease)in deferred taxes payable (617) 1,665
Transfer tofinancingactivities (168) 108
Cash flow from operations 692 23,597

Credit Standby Arrangements with Banks

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Credit facility 100 100

Amount utilised

Bank overdraft facilityis arranged with one bank and the general terms and conditions are set and agreed annually. Interest

rates arevariable and subject toadjustment. Please refer tonote 16.

Loan Facilities with Financial Institutions

CONSOLIDATED GROUP

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Loan facilities 16,590 16,590
Amount utilised (16,590) (16,590)

For more details on theloan facilities, please refer tonote 16.
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2017 2016

NOTE $'000 $'000
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Result of Parent Entity
Profit for the period 44 3,520
Other comprehensiveincaome - -
Total comprehensiveincome for the period 44 3,520
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current Assets
Cash 4 1
Trade and other receivables - =
Other assets 8 5
Non-current Assets
Trade and other receivables — loans to controlled entities ii 19,406 20,807
Investment — controlled entities i 490 490
Property, plant and equipment 33 40
Total Assets 19,941 21,343
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 65 95
Short term provisions 4,593 851
Non-Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables - -
Provisions 16 13
Total Liabilities 4,674 959
Net Assets 15,267 20,384
Total Equity
Issued capital 17,308 17,077
Retained earnings/(accumulatedlosses) (2,041) 3,307
Total Equity 15,267 20,384
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NOTE 31: PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

i. Controlled Entities
Investmentsincontrolled entities are unquoted and comprise:

PARENT ENTITY

2017 2016
Controlled Entities Class of Shares Holding Investment Holding Investment
% $'000 % $'000
Desane Properties Pty Ltd Ordinary 100 4390 100 490
Desane Contracting Pty Ltd Ordinary 100 - 100 -
490 490

Allcontrolled entities areincorporatedin Australia. Desane Properties Pty Ltd declared a dividend of $500,000 out of
retained profits (2016: $nil). Desane Contracting Pty Ltd declared a dividend of $623,000 (2016: $4,546,136).

Contribution to profit/(loss) after tax:

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Desane Group Holdings Limited (1,079) (1,026)
Desane Properties Pty Limited 6,321 1,550
Desane Contracting Pty Limited (197) 4,543
5,045 5,067

ii. Loans to Controlled Entities
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Desane Properties Pty Limited 19,406 20,807
Desane Contracting Pty Limited - -
19,406 20,807

Guarantees

Desane Group Holdings Limited has not enteredinto any guarantees,in the current or previous financialyear,in relation to
the above debts of its controlled entities.

Capital Commitments
There arenocapitalcommitments tonote.
Contractual Commitments

At30June 2017, Desane Group Haoldings Limited had not enteredintoany contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment or any other affairs (2016: Nil).
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NOTE 32: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The saleof 7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove was completed on 31July 2017. Following settlement, the Group’s cash position has been
further boosted by $12.3m and the Company’s total debt facility has been reduced by 32% to $11.1m.

As perthe ASXannouncement dated 11 August 2017, Desane commenced urgent proceedingsin the Supreme Court of

NSW, seeking relief that the State of New South Wales, the Roads and Maritime Services (“RMS”) and Sydney Motorway
Corporation (“SMC”) be restrained from acting upon or taking any step, in reliance upon the Proposed Acquisition Notice
(“PAN”)issued by RMS to Desane dated 26 May 2017. Desane has sought on a final basis a declaration that the PAN was invalid
and that the notice be set aside.

Otherthan the above, at the date of this report andin the opinion of the directors, no matters or circumstances have arisen
since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated
group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated groupin future financial years.

NOTE 33: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

A significant portion of all the Group’sinvestment properties are under financialloans.

7-90rion Road, Lane Cove
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

Inaccordance with aresolution of the directors of Desane Group Holdings Limited, the directors of the company
declare that:

1. Thefinancial statements and notes, as set out on pages 29 to 69 arein accordance with the Corporations Act
2007and;

a. Comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which, as stated in accounting policy note 1to the financial
statements, constitutes compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); and

b. Giveatrueandfairview of the financial positionasat30 June 2017 and of the performance for the year ended
on that date of the consclidated group;

2. Inthedirectors’ opinionthere arereasonahble grounds to believe that the company will be able to payits debts as
and when they become due and payable; and

3. Thedirectorshave been giventhe declarations requiredbya295A of the Corporations Act 2001from the Managing
Director and Chief Financial Officer.

This declarationis madein accordance with a resclution of the Board of Directors.

Sk Ll AL

J B Sheehan P Montrone
Director Director
Sydney

23 August 2017
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GCC Business & Assurance Pty Ltd GPO Box 4566, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone: (02) 9231 6166
ABN 61 105 044 862 Facsimile: (02) 9231 6155

Suite 807, 109 Pitt Street, Sydney NSW 2000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DESANE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report on the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Desane Group Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities (the Group),
which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion:

a. the accompanying financial report of Desane Group Holdings Limited and Controlled Entities is in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001; including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
b.  the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further disclosed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to
our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to
the directors of the company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2017. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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GCC Business & Assurance Pty Ltd

ABN 61 105 044 862

Description of Key Audit Matter

1. Valuation of Investment Properties — non current
refer note 1(e) and note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

$,000
7 Sirius Road, Lane Cove 6,800
13 Sirius Road, Lane Cove 5,300

The properties were valued by the directors based
on independent valuations undertaken by a firm of
licensed valuers.

Commercial property valuations are sensitive to the
key assumptions applied in valuations. In
particular, rates of capitalisation of net rental
income, the inputs to determine discounted cash
flow outcomes and in appropriately assessing
market sales evidence in the property sector and
location under review.

GPO Box 4566, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone: (02) 9231 6166
Facsimile: (02) 9231 6155

Suite 807, 109 Pitt Street, Sydney NSW 2000

How Our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures included, but were not limited to the
following:

1. We confirmed that the independent valuations
were undertaken in accordance with both
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
13 and the Australian Property Institute Standards
to determine the fair value of the properties.

2. We verified the qualifications of the valuers and
their experience in the Sydney industrial and
commercial property market.

3. We considered the valuation methods used in the
valuers’ reports to ensure their approach and
methodologies accorded with the industry norm for
valuations of this nature and that all commonly
accepted valuation methods had been considered.

4. We checked the reliability of the underlying
assumptions used in the valuations to supporting
lease agreements and other documents.

5. We compared the inputs in the valuations,
including capitalisation rates, discount rates and
rental yields to historical data and available
industry data. The relative sensitivity of the inputs
were discussed with the valuers.

6. We considered the adequacy of the disclosures in
the financial statements.

We confirmed that the valuers are members of
recognised professional bodies for valuers and the
valuations were in accordance with generally
acceptable market valuations with the key assumptions
being within the range of current market data. We
found the disclosures in the financial statements to be
adequate.

GCC Business & Assurance Pty Ltd

ABN 61 105 044 862

Description of Key Audit Matter

2. Valuation of Development Property — current
refer notes 1u(iii), 22 and 32 for details.

$,000
68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle 12,481

The property is subject to a Proposed Acquisition
Notice (PAN) issued by the Roads and Maritime
Services (RMS) for the WestConnex project.

Desane have not accepted the offer of
compensation made under the PAN for either the
property or for the business disruption
compensation as being adequate. Desane has
initiated legal action in response.

GPO Box 4566, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone: (02) 9231 6166
Facsimile: (02) 9231 6155

Suite 807, 109 Pitt Street, Sydney NSW 2000

How Our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures included, but were not limited to the
following:

1. We reviewed relevant legal and other
documentation, corresponded with the solicitors
retained by Desane regarding the PAN and
interviewed each of the directors. We discussed
the operation of the Legislation and the prescribed
procedures to be followed with the solicitors and
the directors.

2. We confirmed the lodgement of the statutory claim
for compensation with the RMS as outlined in note
22 and the claim lodged with the Supreme Court of
NSW as outlined in note 32.

3. We considered alternative methods of disclosure
for the asset.

4. We assessed the fairness and acceptability of the
directors’ decision that the property should
continue to be carried forward in the financial
statements at the value determined for the last
year (with the exception of capitalised costs) on
the grounds that the total amount of compensation
ultimately recoverable cannot be reasonably
forecast at the date of this report.

5. We reviewed the disclosure in the financial
statements to assess whether it was factual and
current at the date of this report.

We found the directors’ treatment of the value of the
property in the financial statements to be fair in all the
circumstances and the accounts disclosures to be
factual and current.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

3. Valuation of Investment Property held for Sale
(refer note 13)

$,000
7-9 Orion Road, Lane Cove 17,825
The property was subject to a contract of sale at 30
June 2017. The property was valued at the net

amount recoverable from the sale. The date of
settlement was 31 July 2017.

Our procedures included, but were not limited to the
following:

1. We verified the settlement of the sale of the
property on 31 July 2017 to the sales contract,
solicitor's settlement statement, title certificates
and other documentation.

2. The net proceeds of sale were agreed to Desane’s
banking records.

3. We verified the repayment of the associated loan,
to supporting legal documentation and the
discharge of the mortgage and guarantee held
over the property.

The value as disclosed in the financial statements was
fully recovered.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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GPO Box 4566, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone: (02) 9231 6166
Facsimile: (02) 9231 6155

GCC Business & Assurance Pty Ltd

ABN 61 105 044 862
Suite 807, 109 Pitt Street, Sydney NSW 2000

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the financial report and our
auditor’s report thereon as set out on pages 26 to 75. Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the
other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection
with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial
report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could be
reasonably expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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GCC Business & Assurance Pty Ltd
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on the Remuneration

We have audited the remuneration report included in pages 20 to 21 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30
June 2017. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
remuneration report in accordance with s 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Desane Group Holdings Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2017,
complies with s 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.
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GCC BUSINESS & ASSURANCE PTY LTD
(Authorised Audit Company)
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GRAEME GREEN
Director

Sydney
23 August 2017

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DESANE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

)

)

UALREPORT2017



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

DESANE.COM.AU

v

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The shareholderinformation set out below was applicable as at 11 August 2017.

1. SHAREHOLDING

Distribution of equitable securities:

NUMBER OF
NUMBER OF HOLDERS OF % OF
ORDINARY ORDINARY ISSUED
CATEGORY (SIZE OF HOLDING) SHARES SHARES CAPITAL
1-1,000 30,591 13 0.08
1,001 -5,000 344,623 128 0.93
5,001-10,000 393,208 51 1.06
10,001 -100,000 5,541,908 140 14.90
100,001 - and over 30,880,570 53 83.03
37,190,900 485 100.00
There were 59 holders ofless than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares.
2. TWENTY LARGEST QUOTED EQUITY SECURITY HOLDERS
Thenames of the 20largest security holders arelisted below:
% HELD TO
ORDINARY ISSUED
NAME SHARES CAPITAL
1. CuparaPtyLtd 10,246,252 27.55
2. JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 4,353,058 11.70
3. HorriePtyLtd 2,323,186 6.25
4. Montevans Pty Ltd <M & M Super A/C> 2,048,762 5.51
5 Glencairn Pty Limited 949,902 2.55
6 PFPT Management Pty Ltd <Pellarini Super Fund A/C> 853,482 2.29
7. CordatoPartners (Superannuation) Pty Ltd <Cordato Partners S/FA/C> 673,099 1.81
8. Hillmorton Custodians Pty Ltd <The Lennox Unit A/C> 626,622 1.68
9. John & Judith Pty Ltd <Joju Superannuationfund A/C> 549,077 1.48
10. National Nominees Limited 471,203 1.27
11. Keiser Investments Pty Ltd <Gann Family Retirement A/C> 458,081 1.23
12. Mr David Cooper + Ms Adrienne Witteman <Private Super Fund A/C> 346,104 0.93
13. Dotnric Pty Ltd <FamigliadiRiccardoS/FA/C> 311,703 0.84
14. Oakmount Nominees Pty Ltd <Narromine Super Fund A/C> 300,000 0.81
15. Joe Scardino + Felicia Scardino 273,555 0.74
16. Mocorb Pty Ltd <BMC Superannuation Fund A/C> 265,573 0.71
17. Mr Peter Howells 258,359 0.69
18. Kelpador Pty Ltd <Superannuation Fund A/C> 257,972 0.69
19. Whimplecreek Pty Ltd <Stawell Family A/C> 250,000 0.67
20. Evans Trading Co Pty Ltd 222,874 0.60
26,038,864 70.01
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3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Substantial holdersin the Company are set out below:

ORDINARY
NUMBER %
Cupara Pty Ltd 10,246,252 27.55
Greig & Harrison Pty Ltd 5,480,418 14.74
Phoenix Portfolios Pty Ltd 4,824,261 12.97
Montevans Pty Ltd <M & M Super A/C> 2,048,762 5.51

4. VOTING RIGHTS

The voting rights attaching toeach class of shares are set out below:

ORDINARY SHARES

Norestrictions. Onashow of hands, every member present or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll, each share

shall have one vote.

Therearenoother classes of equity securities.
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COMPANY PARTICULARS

DIRECTORS & KEY PERSONNEL

John Blair Sheehan AM
Chairman (Non-executive director)

Phil Montrone OAM
Managing Director

John William Bartholomew
Director (non-executive)

Rick Montrone
Director - Head of Property

Jack Sciara
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

PRINCIPAL REGISTERED
OFFICE IN AUSTRALIA
68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle NSW 2039

OTHER COMPANY DETAILS
Postaladdress: PO Box 331, Leichhardt NSW 2040

Telephone: (02)9555-9922
Facsimile: (02)9555-9944
E-mail: info@desane.com.au

Website: www.desane.com.au
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COMPANY PARTICULARS

SHARE REGISTER

Sharehaolders with questions about their shareholdings
should contact Desane’s external share registrar:

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Level 5,115 Grenfell Street, Adelaide SA 5000
Postal Address: GPO Box 2975, Melbourne VIC 3001

Telephone enquiries within Australia
1300-556-161

Telephone enquiries cutside Australia
61-3-9415-4000

Website: www.computershare.com

Please advise the share registrarif you have anew
postal address.

AUDITOR

GCC Business & Assurance Pty Ltd
Suite 807,109 Pitt Street, Sydney NSW 2000

SOLICITORS

Cordato Partners
Level 5,48 York Street, Sydney NSW 2000

BANKERS

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

SECURITIES EXCHANGE LISTING

Desane Group Holdings Limited shares arelisted on the
Australian Securities Exchange. The ASX codeis DGH.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of Desane Group Holdings
Limited willbe held at 68-72 Lilyfield Road, Rozelle NSW
2039 on Friday,3 November 2017 commencing at 10.00 am.
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